

Table of Contents

Welcome to Year 12	5
NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) Requirements	
Pattern of Study	5
School-Based Assessment: NESA's Policy and Procedures Requirements	
What is the assessment for?	
Final assessment rank Appeal against final assessment rank	
Satisfactory completion of a course	
N Determinations	
N Award Warning Flowchart	
Malpractice	9
Students Requiring Additional Support	10
Disability Provisions	
Life Skills	
Life Skills Assessment	
Assessment Notification and Receipt Task Submission	
Issues regarding the marking of work	
Late Submission of an Assessment Task	
Application for Special Consideration – Stage 6 (Years 11 and 12)	
Goulburn High School – Assessment Task/Exam Scenarios	
Examination Procedures	
Student Support at Goulburn High School	17
The Library	
Wellbeing Team	
Classroom Teachers and Head Teachers Principal and Deputy Principal	
Counsellors and School Psychologist	
Rights and Responsibilities	
HSC Assessment for VET Courses	19
HSC ASSESSMENT CALENDAR	20
ENGLISH ADVANCED	22
ENGLISH STANDARD	24
ENGLISH STUDIES	26
ANCIENT HISTORY	28
BIOLOGY	30
BUSINESS STUDIES	32
COMMUNITY AND FAMILY STUDIES (CAFS)	34
DESIGN AND TECHNOLOGY	36
EXPLORING EARLY CHILDHOOD	38
FOOD TECHNOLOGY	40
HISTORY EXTENSION	42
INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY – METAL AND ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES	
INVESTIGATING SCIENCE	
MATHEMATICS STANDARD 2 PATHWAY	
MATHEMATICS STANDARD 1 PATHWAY	
MATHEMATICS ADVANCED	52

MODERN HISTORY
PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT HEALTH PHYSICAL EDUCATION
SPORT, LIFESTYLE AND RECREATION
VISUAL ARTS
CONSTRUCTION
HOSPITALITY
PRIMARY INDUSTRIES
GLOSSARY OF KEY WORDS
Malpractice Appeal Form
Task/Result Appeal Form
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL CONSIDERATION FOR AN ACCIDENT / MISADVENTURE / ILLNESS / SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 69
NSW Education Standards Authority 2022 Illness72
Misadventure - Student Information Guide 72

Welcome to Year 12 2022-2023 Higher School Certificate Course

This assessment handbook for the HSC Course is provided to:

- assist students in understanding the place of assessment in their HSC Course credential
- explain the processes by which assessment marks are determined and the process for requesting a review, if necessary
- assist students in planning and organising their time, by informing them of when assessment tasks are due

It is **our** responsibility to provide you with these guidelines and explain them to you. It is **your** responsibility to read and ensure that you understand them.

Mr Yogesh Mani Principal

NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) Requirements

Full details may be obtained from the NESA website: <u>http://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au</u>

This site will also allow you to access full copies of each syllabus, assessment requirements, lists of prescribed texts, specifications for each course, as well as publications including past examination papers, specimen papers and *Notes from the Marking Centre*.

In order for you to qualify for the HSC course, the principal must certify to NESA that you have:

- 1. satisfactorily completed a pattern of courses which meets NESA's requirements
- 2. completed the requirements for each course, including any set practicals, projects or work placement
- 3. completed tasks designed by the school for the internal assessment program in each HSC course
- 4. sat for, and made a genuine attempt at, the required HSC Certificate examination.

Pattern of Study

The Preliminary course must be successfully completed before a student can commence the HSC course.

The HSC course runs throughout Term 4, 2022 and Terms 1, 2 and 3, 2023, and must include 10 units of study composed of:

- at least 6 units of NESA developed courses (i.e. courses with an external HSC examination)
- at least 2 units of a NESA developed course in English, or English Studies
- at least 3 courses of a 2 unit value or greater (either NESA developed or NESA endorsed courses)
- at least 4 subjects (including English)

School-Based Assessment: NESA's Policy and Procedures Requirements

What is the assessment for?

The award of the HSC Certificate involves a combination of internal examinations, and other schoolbased assessment in all subject areas. Your Record of School Achievement (RoSA) from NESA will state that you have satisfactorily completed the HSC Course. VET and Life Skills courses have different requirements.

School-based assessment tasks follow NESA's policy and procedures and are designed to measure performance in a wider range of outcomes than may be tested in an examination. Assessment tasks may include tests, written or oral assignments, practical activities, fieldwork and projects. VET courses are assessed on your competency in performing work-related tasks. This assessment counts towards your VET qualification, but not towards your HSC course mark.

The assessment requirements for each NESA developed course are set out in each syllabus and can be found on the NESA website.

Final assessment rank

At the end of the HSC examinations, you can obtain your rank order in each course you have studied based on the school assessment program.

Appeal against final assessment rank

If you feel that your rank in any course is not correct, you may apply to the school principal for a review. The review can only address any clerical or process errors which may have led to your assessment being incorrectly entered. A request for review cannot be based on questioning the professional judgment of the teachers in marking your work.

Satisfactory completion of a course

A student will be considered to have satisfactorily completed a course if, in the principal's view, there is sufficient evidence that the student has:

- a) followed the course developed or endorsed by NESA; and
- b) **applied** themselves with diligence and sustained effort to the set tasks and experiences provided in the course by the school; and
- c) achieved some or all of the course outcomes

For the satisfactory completion of a course, NESA does not mandate an attendance requirement. As a guide, however, student attendance falling below 85% of a school's programmed lesson time for a course, the principal may determine that, as a result of absence, the above course completion criteria may not be met. Clearly, the principal will regard absences seriously.

If at any time it appears that a student is at risk of receiving an 'N' determination - a non-successful completion of a course - the principal must warn the student as soon as possible and advise the parent or guardian in writing. This warning should be **issued** in time for the problem to be corrected.

Periodically, each student's progress will be monitored by their Student Support Officer, class teacher, subject head teachers, head teacher wellbeing, careers teacher and the deputy principal. Students who are in danger of receiving an N-determination will be interviewed to create an improvement plan, if possible, and have information sent home informing parents/guardians of their child's status.

Students who have not complied with the above requirements and have received at least two (2) written warnings may be regarded as not having satisfactorily completed the course. The principal will then issue the N-determination.

N Determinations

Students are responsible in all courses for regular attendance, completion of all coursework and completion of assessment tasks. A student who fails to fulfill his/her responsibilities in attendance, coursework or assessment will face the following consequences:

- The student's parents will be contacted and the student will receive a formal N-determination warning from the class teacher.
- If a student fails to fulfill his/her responsibilities a number of times, the student will receive further N-determination warnings and will be interviewed by the deputy principal or the head teacher wellbeing and an improvement plan will be created. Parents will be provided with a copy of this plan.
- There will be a second interview to assess if the student has successfully met the improvement plan requirements. If the student has not improved accordingly parents will be involved in the interview at this point. This will be the final opportunity for the student to correct the situation.

If the situation is not corrected following an interview with the deputy principal, the student will be issued with a N-determination by the principal. This means that the course will not count towards the completion of their HSC School Certificate.

The purpose of all interviews will be to provide support and encouragement in helping students to meet their responsibilities. A plan will be determined to help students correct the situation. Please note, that while you will be required to submit any missing assessment tasks, those tasks will not be included in your assessment mark.

Ultimately, it is the student's responsibility to ensure all requirements are being met for all courses. Please make every effort to ensure you achieve a successful record of study.

N Award Warning Flowchart



Malpractice

Cheating of any kind is unacceptable. Behaving dishonestly to gain unfair advantage in assessments or exams is malpractice or cheating. Any form of malpractice, including plagiarism, is unacceptable. We treat these allegations very seriously. Detected malpractice may result in losing marks for a section of a task or receiving zero for the whole task.

Malpractice includes:

- copying part or all of someone else's work and presenting it as your own
- using material directly from books, journals, CDs or the internet without giving its source
- building on someone else's ideas without giving their source
- buying, stealing or borrowing someone else's work and presenting it as your own
- submitting work that someone else, for example a parent, tutor or subject expert, substantially contributed to
- using someone else's words, ideas, designs or work in projects and performance tasks without giving their source
- paying someone to write or prepare material and presenting it as your own
- not acknowledging any work completed by others for your submitted work or performance
- breaching school exam rules
- cheating in an HSC exam
- using non-approved aids in an assessment task
- giving false reasons for not handing in work by the due date
- helping another student to engage in malpractice
- being responsible for actions done or omitted to be done that confer an unfair advantage in relation to the outcome of any HSC exam – or irrespective of whether such actions occur before, during or after such an exam or assessment.

If you are suspected of malpractice, you will need to show that all unacknowledged work is entirely your own. You might need to:

- prove and explain your work process with diaries, journals, notes, working plans, sketches
 or progressive drafts that show how your ideas developed
- answer questions about the assessment task, exam or submitted work being investigated to show your knowledge, understanding and skills.

Students Requiring Additional Support

Disability Provisions

Any HSC student with a disability recognised in the Commonwealth Disability Standards for Education 2005 can apply for disability provisions. Disability provisions apply only where the disability needs a practical arrangement to reduce disadvantage in an exam situation. Disability provisions also apply to temporary and emergency-related disabilities such as where a student breaks their writing arm a week before an examination. Students who become ill during an examination period may be eligible to make an illness/misadventure application rather than a disability provisions application.

To apply for provisions, schools must submit an online application, with evidence, to NESA. At Goulburn High, these provisions are applied for and coordinated by the staff in the Wellbeing faculty. Most eligible students have already had support prior to Year 12 and will be consulted during Term 4, when the application will be prepared for submission to NESA during Term 1 of the HSC year.

Schools are responsible for determining and approving disability provisions for all school-based assessment tasks. We make that judgement based on the likelihood of a successful NESA application so that eligible students receive provisions for school-based tasks throughout Year 12. Please see your deputy principal if you want further information.

Life Skills

Life Skills courses have been developed by NESA to extend the Stage 6 curriculum to meet the special educational needs of students. This is in recognition of the principle that the post-compulsory years of schooling should cater for all students who choose to participate.

To meet this commitment, NESA has developed Life Skills courses for Stage 6 in each broad area of learning. These courses have NESA developed status and can be used along with other NESA developed courses to meet requirements for the award of the Higher School Certificate.

Each Life Skills course comprises 2-Unit Preliminary and HSC courses. There is no external examination for Life Skills courses.

An individual learning plan will be developed collaboratively with the student, teacher and a representative from the Wellbeing faculty to select the outcomes, content and appropriate assessment of the course that will be covered, specific to that students' learning needs.

Students studying a Life Skills pattern of study are also subject to N-determination warnings and N-determinations.

Life Skills Assessment

Each student undertaking a Life Skills course will study selected outcomes and content.



Assessment Notification and Receipt

Students are given at least 2 weeks notice in writing of assessment tasks and their relative weighting.

A teacher may apply for a change to an assessment task which will be consulted with the Deputy Principal. New Assessment Task Cover Sheets will be issued when changes to a task or date due become necessary.

Task Submission

All tasks are to be handed in as per the assessment notification. Tasks can be handed in before that time. The set time is at the **beginning of the period in which the subject occurs.** However, when the same task is set for classes on different lines the head teacher of that subject will establish a common set time.

If you are absent and cannot personally deliver a task to school, then arrangements must be made to ensure it arrives **before the period on the due date**.

On the day of a task it is expected that **all students are present for their normal timetable**, in line with school policy. If a student is not present to hand in or complete an assessment task then a completed Application for Special Consideration for Accident/Illness/Misadventure/Special Circumstances form with a medical certificate, or other appropriate documentation, will be required.

Issues regarding the marking of work

Any complaint relating to the marking of a task can only be considered at the time the task results are ISSUED. To formalise your complaint, complete the Task/Result Appeal form

The process to follow is:

- discuss first with the teacher request an explanation of how the mark was arrived
- if not satisfied, discuss with the head teacher
- if still not satisfies, see the deputy principal
- if still not satisfied, see the principal

Late Submission of an Assessment Task

The precise due date for an assessment task will be provided by your classroom teacher, at least **TWO WEEKS before it is due.**

If your assessment task is not submitted on the due date you will receive a ZERO mark.

- If you receive a ZERO, you may lodge an Application for Special Consideration for Accident/Illness/Misadventure/Special Circumstances form to the head teacher for the deputy principal
- An extension of time for the submission of an assessment task will only be granted in exceptional circumstances and only after the deputy principal has reviewed the student's Application for Special Consideration for Accident/Illness/Misadventure/Special Circumstances

If you fail to submit assessment tasks amounting to a significant percentage of your total assessment mark for the course, the Principal will deem you to have **NOT FULFILLED THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE COURSE** and you will not be eligible to receive the award of a HSC Certificate.

Application for Special Consideration – Stage 6 (Years 11 and 12)

for Accident/Illness/Misadventure/Special Circumstances

This process ensures that students are treated fairly and equitably across the school. It is vital that any student who does not hand in or sit a task at the appointed time uses this process. Students cannot negotiate ANY changes, no matter how small, in timing of the handing in or sitting of a task with their teacher or head teacher, no matter what the circumstances.

You may lodge an **Application for Special Consideration for Accident/ Illness/ Misadventure/ Special Circumstances** if you believe that circumstances occurring immediately prior to or during an assessment task or exam, and which were beyond your control, affected your performance. The right to submit and the responsibility for doing so rests with you, except where it is impossible for you to do so, such as in cases of severe illness.

Students should complete/hand in the task/exam as soon as possible and follow it up with an Application for Special Consideration to avoid a zero mark.

All **Applications for Special Consideration** relating to assessment tasks are to be lodged to the relevant head teacher within 48 hours of the due date of the task. Students lodging an appeal should carefully fill out the form. Teachers are available to provide support to students lodging an appeal. Completed forms are to be handed to the head teacher of the faculty concerned.

Applications for Special Consideration may be in respect of:

- Illness or accident i.e. illness or physical injuries suffered directly by you which affected your performance in the assessment task (e.g. influenza, an asthma attack, cut hand).
- Misadventure i.e. any other event beyond your control which affected your performance in the assessment task (e.g. death of a family member, car accident, witness to an accident).
- Regional or State representation at a sporting or cultural event.

Applications for Special Consideration process does not cover:

- Matters relating to long-term loss of preparation time, alleged inadequacies of teaching, loss of study time or facilities, computer technology failure.
- Matters that could have been avoided by the student (e.g. misreading of timetable).
- Long-term illness such as glandular fever, asthma and epilepsy.

In all cases the school requires evidence that clearly identifies the disadvantage you experienced for the task. Your application must include:

- A statement explaining how you were affected during the assessment task
- A medical certificate with details of the illness, together with a statement about how your performance in the assessment task may have been affected. In cases of misadventure, evidence from other sources (e.g. police statements and/or other statements explaining how your performance in the assessment task may have been affected) should be provided
- A statement from your teacher. This should contain reference to your preparation for the assessment task and any other information deemed relevant to the genuineness of the appeal

The head teacher will first consider applications for Special Consideration by making a recommendation and submitting the form to the deputy principal. The final decision on an appeal will be made by the deputy principal in consultation with the principal and communicated to you by the head teacher.

If the appeal is upheld, you will receive either the mark you actually gained on the task, or an estimated mark, on the judgement of the teacher and head teacher or arrangements will be made for you to re-sit or resubmit the assessment. Since students often perform better under stressful conditions than they expect, **it is important to complete the task if possible rather than rely on predictions or estimates.** If an **exam** is missed the student must follow the same procedure as outlined above.

Goulburn High School – Assessment Task/Exam Scenarios

Students should always complete/hand in the task/exam as soon as possible and follow it up with an Application for Special Consideration to avoid a zero mark.

Scenario	Action	Follow-Up		
You are absent on day a task is held due to illness e.g. examination, practical assessment, oral assessment.	 Parent or caregiver should phone or contact the school to notify the teacher/head teacher of the illness. This must by done on the day of the task. To verify the seriousness of the illness, you will require a medical certificate. 	 Upon the first day of return to school you should see your teacher and complete/hand in the task/exam. Complete an Application for Special Consideration and submit to the head teacher, with evidence, within 48 hours. After the deputy principal considers your appeal, you will be notified of the outcome (whether you will receive the marks gained/re sit the task/receive zero marks. 		
You are absent on day a task is to be submitted.	• Parent or caregiver should phone or contact the school to make arrangements with the teacher/head teacher for submission of the task. This must by done on the day of the task.	• The task needs to be delivered to the school on (or before) the due date.		
You become aware of an upcoming absence on the day of a scheduled task.	 You are to notify class teacher as early as possible. Note: You should avoid medical appointments, driving tests, family holidays that conflict with published assessment items. 	 Complete the Application for Special Consideration and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence, including parent's signature. After the deputy principal considers your appeal, you will be notified of the outcome 		
You become aware that you have take home and/or in class tasks due when you have work placement for another subject	• You are to notify class teacher as early as possible.	 Hand in task: make arrangements with the teacher of that subject to hand the task in earlier or for a reliable friend/family member to hand it in on the due date on your behalf. In class task/exam: complete the Application for Special Consideration before you start work placement and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence. The deputy principal will make a decision about when to re sit the task/exam 		
You fail to submit an assessment task at the appropriate time.	 Every assessment task is designed to assist your understanding of the course. It is important that you complete, to a satisfactory standard, all assessment tasks. 	 Class teacher will notify the head teacher. N-determination warning letter will be sent to your parents along with notification of a ZERO grade. If you believe you have good reasons complete the Application for Special Consideration and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence. You must still submit the task to satisfy HSC requirements. 		
You arrive at school to become aware you have accidentally left your task or equipment at home.	 You are to notify teacher/head teacher immediately. Provision may be made for you to return home or parents contacted. 	 If you follow all procedures promptly, no penalty will be incurred, as long as you return in time to complete the set task. 		

Scenario	Action	Follow-Up		
You experience technical difficulties in publication of a task.	 Always back up work on a computer disk. Keep draft copies of <u>all</u> work. 	 No provision can be made for computer problems. You <i>submit</i> hand written copy and any available draft copies. Complete the <i>Application for Special Consideration</i> if relevant and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence/explanation. 		
You are experiencing difficulty in completing a research task.	 You must discuss any difficulties with your class teacher well before the due date. <i>Written</i> application for extension may be made to the teacher/head teacher via the Application for Special Consideration. The deputy principal will consider this. This must be submitted at least THREE days prior to due date. 	 You will be advised if you have been granted an extension. If an extension is granted, you must submit the task by the new due date. 		
You submit work which is not your own.	 All materials used in research must be appropriately referenced (including Internet). 	• Using the work of others and presenting it as your own is a serious offence. The consequence will be zero marks awarded for the task, N-determination warning letter and an interview.		
You complete task of poor quality.	 Every assessment task is designed to assist your understanding of the course. It is important that you complete, to a satisfactory standard, all assessment tasks. 	 Your teacher/head teacher will notify you and your parents/caregivers that a non-serious attempt was made and you will be issued with an N Warning. Complete the Application for Special Consideration if you believe you have reason and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence. You will need to resubmit the task at an appropriate standard to satisfy HSC requirements. The marks awarded from your initial submission will stand without alteration unless the Application for Special Consideration is granted. 		
You are unprepared for an oral task presentation.	• You must be prepared to present the task on the first day listed, regardless of your position in the published order.	 If you are not prepared to deliver the task when called upon, a ZERO grade will be awarded and you will be issued with an N-determination warning letter. Complete the Application for Special Consideration if you believe you have reason and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence. 		
You attend school on the day task is due but you go home sick prior to the lesson when the task is to be submitted.	 It is your responsibility to submit the task to your teacher/head teacher prior to leaving school. 	 If you fail to submit the task on date due it will receive a ZERO grade/mark and you will be issued with an N-determination warning letter. Complete the Application for Special Consideration if you believe you have reason and submit it to the subject head teacher, with supporting evidence. 		

Examination Procedures

The HSC year at Goulburn High School has one separate examination period during Term 2, known as the HSC Trial Examinations. These exams are intended to give students an experience as close as possible to the HSC examinations. The Trial Examination timetable will be distributed two weeks before the examination period.

During the examination period students are expected to adhere to the following rules and conditions:

- Attendance is compulsory.
- Make sure that you are ready to enter the examination room no later than 10 minutes before the examination is due to start.
- Once you are told, move into the room quietly. You are not allowed to speak whilst moving to your seat.
- Full school uniform must be worn. Hats or hoodies must not be worn inside the examination room.
- During the examination time all students must remain silent.
- Eating and drinking in the examination room is banned. Water in a clear container is allowed.
- Any misbehaviour, such as turning around or distracting others, may result in your dismissal from the examination room and the cancellation of your exam paper.
- Make sure that you have been to the toilet beforehand. If you need to go to the toilet, raise your hand.
- If you have a question about the paper, raise your hand and wait for a supervisor to see you.
- No student will be allowed to leave the examination room during the examination time.
- Read all instructions carefully.
- Mobile phones are not allowed during exams and must be turned off and handed to the teacher on duty or remain in bags away from the exam area.
- All calculators to be used during examinations must be NESA approved. If unsure check with the Mathematics Department.
- Make sure that you sign on and off for every examination.
- If you are absent for an examination you must contact the school as soon as practical so that an alternative time within the examination period can be arranged. On your first day of return to school you will need to provide the deputy principal with a completed Application for Special Consideration for Accident/Illness/ Misadventure/Special Circumstances and provide supporting documentation (usually a medical certificate).

Student Support at Goulburn High School

The Library

The Library is a great place for research and study. Use your time wisely when you have a study period. It is important that you **follow the protocol** for study periods

If you do come to the Library ask the librarian for help to find that extra bit of information that will help you write that essay or understand what you are learning in class. There is more to research than Wikipedia and the librarian can show you the tricks to researching smarter not harder, how to find books, journal articles and credible websites. If you need assistance with your assessment tasks just ask. The Library is still a **great place to chill and read a book** but only if your assessment tasks are up to date and you need some R&R.

Wellbeing Team

In Year 12 your Student Support teacher, learning support teachers and the Wellbeing head teacher offer a range of support. As you know, your wellbeing is a major concern of theirs. Some of the things they can assist you with include:

- stress
- an unexpected change of circumstances
- family issues
- pressure from work, home, friends
- financial hardship
- study

Essentially they will listen, support you practically where they can and refer you to more specialised help where necessary.

Classroom Teachers and Head Teachers

Our teaching staff understand the pressures of the HSC course. If you are worried about classwork or assessment tasks please speak with your teacher promptly rather than worry. They are able to clarify expectations and tasks. Head teachers are also available if you need further clarification, support or an application for Special Consideration.

Principal and Deputy Principal

Mr Mani, Mr Yee and Mrs Hyland are always available to discuss any issues or queries that may be concerning you. Please call in and have a chat. It is always better to discuss a concern than let something become a major issue. The office staff can always pass on a message if they are not available when you call in.

Counsellors and School Psychologist

The counselling team at Goulburn High are available to discuss any concerns that require more specialised support. You can self-refer by using the forms outside the counsellor office but a conversation with the principal or deputy may speed up the referral process. Our counsellors can help with a range of concerns including stress, anxiety and relationship issues with friends, family and others. Counsellor support can help you manage an issue that you felt was getting out of control. It can be challenging to accept this support, but it is often very worthwhile.

Rights and Responsibilities

It is your responsibility to read this information carefully. The following points apply to all students studying any subject in any faculty at Goulburn High School

The school is responsible for providing:

- set tasks which will measure your performance in each component of the course
- an assessment schedule and course requirements for each course
- at least two weeks notification that an assessment task will take place or be due
- appropriate notice of a change to a previously notified task
- advice on procedures to be followed in the event of an illness or misadventure preventing you from completing as assessment task or examination on time
- advice on the procedure and consequences which flow from failure to maintain satisfactory progress
- prompt feedback on each task. If you are concerned about a mark or rank on a particular task, you should speak to your teacher as soon as possible after results are issued
- we must also keep records of your performance in these tasks

As a student, you are responsible for:

- meeting all course requirements
- applying yourself with diligence and sustained effort to the set tasks and experiences provided in each course by being present for all **timetabled classes**, **PBL assemblies**, **year meetings** and **work placements**
- being on time for all classes and maintaining a high level of attendance
- making a serious attempt at all assessment tasks. If you do not make a serious attempt at assessment tasks worth in excess of 50% of the available marks you may receive an Ndetermination in a course
- attending all exams punctually with the appropriate equipment or communicate with school if there is an issue
- integrity work submitted must by your own and sources consulted must be acknowledged
- submitting all tasks on or before the due date, including those due during work placement
- in the case of VET students, ensure you are properly equipped and dressed
- ensuring appointments are made at times when there are no scheduled assessment tasks
- explaining all absences to your teachers and the office, by providing documentation such as a medical certificate and a note
- contacting your teacher if there is an issue with work placement or other offsite requirements
- follow the Application for Special Consideration process where appropriate

HSC Assessment for VET Courses

Assessment in VET courses is competency based. This means that you need to demonstrate that you have gained, and can apply the specific knowledge and skills for the unit of competency to be deemed competent in that unit. Evidence of competence will be collected in a variety of ways including written tasks, practical demonstration, portfolio or assignments.

You will be deemed Competent if performance in all required assessment activities for the unit of competency is satisfactory or Not Competent if you are still developing skills and/or your performance is at an unsatisfactory level. There is no pass or fail. This means that a course mark is not allocated. For this reason, the assessment schedule for HSC VET courses is in a different format to other Board Developed Courses.

Formal assessment will be scheduled only when you have developed the necessary skills, and underpinning knowledge to demonstrate competency.

Your trainer will keep an outcome record of units of competency. You may request to see this record at any time to determine your progress. Alternately you will be supplied with a competency log for maintaining a record of units achieved. You are entitled to seek advice about options for further training and assessment for competencies 'not achieved'. You will also receive a report from the school each semester indicating competency achievement.

The achievement of units of competency, will lead to a Certificate at AQF level I, II or III or a Statement of Attainment towards the AQF qualification. A transcript will be issued by the NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) on behalf of Public Schools NSW Wagga Wagga, Registered Training Organisation (RTO) 90333 for successful completion.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) apply on the RTO RPL form with the evidence relevant to each unit of competency for which RPL is requested. The RPL form and evidence portfolio must be submitted to your trainer who will forward it to the RTO manager for review.

Credit Transfer will be given for units of competency previously achieved with another RTO.

N Determination letters will be issued to students who do not demonstrate due diligence and sustained effort in the course, participate in mandatory work placement and or apply themselves to course outcomes. This process may then lead to an N-determination for this subject which may prevent the achievement of the HSC. Warning letters will not be issued for failure to achieve competency but are about fulfilling the requirements of learning for the HSC.

https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/about/news/novel-coronavirus/vet-work-placement

Workplacement is a mandatory HSC component in some courses and must be completed during the course. (Refer to the specific course assessment summary for more detailed information).

- you will not be permitted to participate in a work placement if you are not deemed 'work ready' by your trainer.
- a N-determination will be issued if work placement is not satisfactorily completed. This means that the course will not count towards your HSC pattern of study. However, you will still receive a Certificate or Statement of Attainment which indicates the units of competency achieved towards the qualification.
- the scheduled date for work placement is shown in the course assessment summary.
- you will complete a workplace journal of your placement.

HSC Examination is only available in some VET courses (Refer to the specific course assessment summary for more detailed information).

- Optional for students completing the 240 hour course and is intended for Australian Tertiary Admissions Rank (ATAR) purposes only. (Refer to the specific course assessment summary for more detailed information).
- Independent of the competency based assessment requirements for the Australian Qualifications Framework (AQF) VET qualification. The satisfactory completion of the course will still appear on your HSC if the optional exam is not undertaken.

If you intend to use your VET course towards the calculation of the ATAR, the school must submit an estimated mark of your likely performance in the HSC examination. The calculation of the mark is a school decision and will include the Trial HSC examination. This mark is only used in the event of misadventure.

HSC ASSESSMENT CALENDAR Goulburn High School

2022

Term 4 WEEK	Assessment Tasks due each week
Week 1 A	
Week 2 B	
Week 3 A	
Week 4 B	
Week 5 A	Food Technology
Week 6 B	
Week 7 A	Mathematics Standard 2 Pathway, Mathematics Standard 1 Pathway, Mathematics Advanced, Biology
Week 8 B	Investigating Science, Business Studies, Modern History, Industrial Technology, Visual Arts, Design and Technology
Week 9 A	Ancient History
Week 10 B	English Advanced, English Standard, English Studies,

2023

Term 1 WEEK	Assessment Tasks due each week
Week 1 B	
Week 2 A	
Week 3 B	
Week 4 A	
Week 5 B	Food Technology
Week 6 A	Industrial Technology, Construction, Hospitality, Primary Industries
Week 7 B	Construction, Hospitality, Primary Industries
Week 8 A	Investigating Science, Ancient History, Business Studies, Construction, Hospitality, Primary Industries, Design and Technology, History Extension
Week 9 B	Mathematics Standard 2 Pathway, Mathematics Standard 1 Pathway, Mathematics Advanced, Modern History
Week 10 A	Biology
Week 11 B	English Advanced, English Standard, English Studies

Term 2 WEEK	Assessment Tasks due each week
Week 1 A	
Week 2 B	Visual Arts
Week 3 A	Food Technology
Week 4 B	Design and Technology
Week 5 A	
Week 6 B	Mathematics Standard 2 Pathway, Mathematics Standard 1 Pathway, Mathematics Advanced, Industrial Technology
Week 7 A	Industrial Technology
Week 8 B	Investigating Science, Ancient History, Business Studies, Modern History, Industrial Technology
Week 9 A	
Week 10 B	English Advanced, English Standard, English Studies

Term 3 WEEK	Assessment Tasks due each week
Week 1 A	
Week 2 B	History Extension
Week 3 A	
Week 4 B	Trail HSC; English Advanced, English Standard, English Studies, Investigating Science Modules 5-8
Week 5 A	Trail HSC; English Advanced, English Standard, English Studies, Investigating Science Modules 5-8
Week 6 B	
Week 7 A	
Week 8 B	
Week 9 A	
Week 10 B	

FACULTY: ENGLISH

ENGLISH ADVANCED

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task	Description:	Common Module – Texts and Human Experiences (including related text) Multimodal Presentation	Module A: Textual Conversations Comparative essay	Module B: Critical Study of Literature Module C: Craft of Writing Sustained response	Trial HSC Examination ALL modules: - Common Module: Texts and Human Experiences - Module A: Textual Conversations - Module B: Critical Study of Literature - Module C: Craft of Writing
	Outcomes:	EA12-1, EA12-2, EA12-5, EA12-7, EA12-9	EA12-1, EA12-4, EA12-5, EA12-6, EA12-9	EA12-1, EA12-3, EA12-4, EA12-8, EA12-9	EA12-1, EA12-3 EA12-4, EA12-5, EA12-9
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 10	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 11	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 10	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of course content	50%	10%	15%	10%	15%
Skills in responding to texts and communication of idea appropriate to audience, purpose and context across all modes	50%	15%	10%	15%	10%
TOTAL	100%	25%	25%	25%	25%

ENGLISH ADVANCED Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

EA12-1	independently responds to, composes and evaluates a range of complex texts for understanding, interpretation, critical analysis, imaginative expression and pleasure
EA12-2	uses, evaluates and justifies processes, skills and knowledge required to effectively respond to and compose texts in different modes, media and technologies
EA12-3	critically analyses and uses language forms, features and structures of texts justifying appropriateness for specific purposes, audiences and contexts and evaluates their effects on meaning
EA12-4	strategically adapts and applies knowledge, skills and understanding of language concepts and literary devices in new and different contexts
EA12-5	thinks imaginatively, creatively, interpretively, critically and discerningly to respond to, evaluate and compose texts that synthesise complex information, ideas and arguments
EA12-6	investigates and evaluates the relationships between texts
EA12-7	evaluates the diverse ways texts can represent personal and public worlds and recognises how they are valued
EA12-8	explains and evaluates nuanced cultural assumptions and values in texts and their effects on meaning
EA12-9	reflects on, evaluates and monitors own learning and refines individual and collaborative processes as an independent learner

FACULTY: ENGLISH

ENGLISH STANDARD

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		Common Module – Texts	Module A: Language,	Module B: Close Study of	Trial HSC Examination
		and Human Experiences	Identity and Culture	Literature	ALL modules:
		(including related text)			- Common Module: Texts
			Analytical response	Module C: Craft of Writing	and Human Experiences
		Multimodal Presentation			- Module A: Language,
				Sustained response	Identity and Culture
					- Module B: Close Study of
					literature
					- Module C: Craft of Writing
	Outcomes:	EN12-1, EN12-2, EN12-3,	EN12-3, EN12-5, EN12-8,	EN12-1, EN12-3, EN12-5,	EN12-1, EN12-3, EN12-4,
		EN12-4, EN12-6	EN12-9	EN12-7, EN12-8	EN12-5, EN12-6, EN12-7
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022 <i>,</i> Term 4	2023, Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3
		Week 10	Week 11	Week 10	Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of	50%	10%	15%	10%	15%
course content	50%	10%	13%	10%	13%
Skills in responding to texts and					
communication of idea	50%	15%	10%	15%	10%
appropriate to audience, purpose	50%	1370	10%	13%	10/0
and context across all modes					
TOTAL	100%	25%	25%	25%	25%

ENGLISH STANDARD Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- EN12-1 independently responds to and composes complex texts for understanding, interpretation, critical analysis, imaginative expression and pleasure EN12-2 uses, evaluates and justifies processes, skills and knowledge required to effectively respond to and compose texts in different modes, media and technologies analyses and uses language forms, features and structures of texts and justifies their appropriateness for purpose, audience and context and explains EN12-3 effects on meaning EN12-4 adapts and applies knowledge, skills and understanding of language concepts and literary devices into new and different contexts thinks imaginatively, creatively, interpretively, analytically and discerningly to respond to and compose texts that include considered and detailed EN12-5 information, ideas and arguments investigates and explains the relationships between texts EN12-6 EN12-7 explains and evaluates the diverse ways texts can represent personal and public worlds EN12-8 explains and assesses cultural assumptions in texts and their effects on meaning
- **EN12-9** reflects on, assesses and monitors own learning and refines individual and collaborative processes as an independent learner

FACULTY: ENGLISH

ENGLISH STUDIES

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task	Description:	Common Module – Texts	Elective Module:	Portfolio: Collection of	Trial HSC Examination
		and Human Experiences	Module C: On the road –	classwork	ALL Modules:
		(including related text)	English and the experience	All Modules:	
			of travel	-Common Module: Texts	-Common Module: Texts
		Multimodal Presentation		and Human Experiences	and Human Experiences
			Research Task	-Module C: On the road –	-Module E: Playing the
				English and the experience	Game
				of travel	-Module K: The Big Screen
				-Module E: Playing the	
				Game	
	Outcomes:	ES12-1, ES12-4, ES12-6,	ES12-2, ES12-3, ES12-7,	ES12-1, ES12-5, ES12-7,	ES12-6, ES12-8, ES12-4,
	-	ES12-8	ES12-9	ES12-10	ES12-9
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022, Term 4	2023, Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3
		Week 10	Week 11	Week 10	Weeks 4-5
Knowledge and understanding of					
course content	50%	15%	10%	15%	10%
Skills in:					
* comprehending texts					
* communicating ideas	50%	10%	15%	15%	10%
 * using language accurately, appropriately and effectively 					
TOTAL	100%	25%	25%	30%	20%

ENGLISH STUDIES Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **ES12-1** comprehends and responds analytically and imaginatively to a range of texts, including short and extended texts, literary texts and texts from academic, community, workplace and social contexts for a variety of purposes
- **ES12-2** identifies, uses and assesses strategies to comprehend increasingly complex and sustained written, spoken, visual, multimodal and digital texts that have been composed for different purposes and contexts
- **ES12-3** accesses, comprehends and uses information to communicate in a variety of ways
- **ES12-4** composes proficient texts in different forms
- **ES12-5** develops knowledge, understanding and appreciation of how language is used, identifying and explaining specific language forms and features in texts that convey meaning to different audiences
- **ES12-6** uses appropriate strategies to compose texts for different modes, media, audiences, contexts and purposes
- **ES12-7** represents own ideas in critical, interpretive and imaginative texts
- **ES12-8** understands and explains the relationships between texts
- **ES12-9** identifies and explores ideas, values, points of view and attitudes expressed in texts, and explains ways in which texts may influence, engage and persuade different audiences
- ES12-10 monitors and reflects on own learning and adjusts individual and collaborative processes to develop as a more independent learner

Higher School Certificate Assessment Schedule 2022-2023

FACULTY: HSIE

ANCIENT HISTORY

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		Core Study: Pompeii	Ancient Period	Ancient Personalities	Trial HSC Examination
		Historical Analysis	In-class Essay	Research Task	
	Outcomes:	AH12-6, AH12-10	AH12-4, AH12-5	AH12-3, AH12-8, AH12-9	AH12-1, AH12-2, AH12-7
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 9	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of course content	40%	5%	10%	5%	20%
Historical skills in the analysis and evaluation of sources and interpretations	20%	5%	5%	5%	5%
Historical inquiry and research	20%	5%	5%	10%	
Communication of historical understanding in appropriate forms	20%	5%	5%	5%	5%
TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

Ancient History Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **AH 12-1** Accounts for the nature of continuity and change in the ancient world.
- **AH 12-2** Proposes arguments about the varying causes and effects of events and developments.
- AH 12-3 Evaluates the role of historical features, individuals and groups in shaping the past.
- **AH 12-4** Analyses the different perspectives of individuals and groups in their historical context.
- **AH 12-5** Assess the significance of historical features, people, places, events and developments of the ancient world.
- AH 12-6 Analyses and interprets different types of sources of evidence to support an historical account or argument.
- **AH 12-7** Discusses and evaluates differing interpretations and representations of the past.
- AH 12-8 Plans and conducts historical investigations and presents reasoned conclusions, using relevant evidence from a range of sources.
- **AH 12-9** Communicates historical understanding, using historical knowledge, concepts and terms, in appropriate and well-structured forms.
- **AH 12-10** Analyses issues relating to the ownership, custodianship and conservation of the ancient past.

FACULTY: SCIENCE

BIOLOGY

Tasks:		Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	
Task Description:		Building a Model of DNA	Depth Study Report	Trial HSC Examination	
Outcomes:		BIO12-3, BIO12-4, BIO12-6, BIO12-7, BIO12-12	BIO12-1, BIO12-4, BIO12-6, BIO12-7, BIO12-13	BIO12-1, BIO12-2, BIO12-3, BIO12-4, BIO12-5, BIO12-6, BIO12-7, BIO12-12, BIO12-13, BIO12-14, BIO12-15	
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 7	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 10	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5	
Skills in working scientifically	60%	10%	30%	20%	
Knowledge and understanding of course content	40%	20%	10%	10%	
TOTAL	100%	30%	40%	30%	

BIOLOGY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **BIO12-1** questioning and predicting: develops and evaluates questions and hypotheses for scientific investigation
- BIO12-2 planning investigations: designs and evaluates investigations in order to obtain primary and secondary data and information
- **BIO12-3** conducting investigations: conducts investigations to collect valid and reliable primary and secondary data and information
- **BIO12-4** processing data and information: selects and processes appropriate qualitative and quantitative data and information using a range of appropriate media
- **BIO12-5** analysing data and information: analyses and evaluates primary and secondary data and information
- **BIO12-6** problem solving: solves scientific problems using primary and secondary data, critical thinking skills and scientific processes
- **BIO12-7** communicating: communicates scientific understanding using suitable language and terminology for a specific audience or purpose
- **BIO12-12** explains the structures of DNA and analyses the mechanisms of inheritance and how processes of reproduction ensure continuity of species
- **BIO12-13** explains natural genetic change and the use of genetic technologies to induce genetic change
- BIO12-14 analyses infectious disease in terms of cause, transmission, management and the organism's response, including the human immune system
- **BIO12-15** explains non-infectious disease and disorders and a range of technologies and methods used to assist, control, prevent and treat non-infectious disease

FACULTY: HSIE

BUSINESS STUDIES

Tasks: Task Description:		Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
		Operations Business Investigation	Marketing Business Report	Finance In-Class Test	Trial HSC Examination
Outcomes:		H2, H4, H5, H9	H2, H4, H5, H6	H1, H3, H6, H8, H10	H1, H3, H6, H10
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge & understanding	40%	5%	15%	10%	10%
Stimulus based skills	20%		5%	5%	10%
Inquiry & Research	20%	10%		10%	
Communication of business information, ideas and issues in appropriate forms	20%	5%	5%		10%
TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

BUSINESS STUDIES Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **H1** critically analyses the role of business in Australia and globally
- **H2** evaluates management strategies in response changes in internal and external influences
- **H3** discusses the social and ethical responsibilities of management
- H4 analyses business functions and processes in large and global businesses
- **H5** explains management strategies and their impact on businesses
- **H6** evaluates the effectiveness of management in the performance of businesses
- H7 plans and conducts investigations into contemporary business issues
- H8 organises and evaluates information for actual and hypothetical business situations
- H9 communicates business information, issues and concepts in appropriate formats
- H10 applies mathematical concepts appropriately in business situations

FACULTY: PDHPE

COMMUNITY AND FAMILY STUDIES (CAFS)

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		IRP Project Plan, Product and Diary	Groups in Context Essay	Case Study	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	H4.1, H4.2	H3.2, H4.2, H5.1	H2.1, H6.1, H6.2	H1.1, H2.2, H3.4, H4.2, H5.2
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 3	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Weeks 10 & 11	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Week 2	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and Understanding of course content	40%		10%		30%
Critical thinking, research methodology, analysing and communicating	60%	20%	15%	25%	
TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

COMMUNITY & FAMILY STUDIES Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1.1 analyses the effect of resource management on the wellbeing of individuals, groups, families and communities
- H2.1 analyses different approaches to parenting and caring relationships
- H2.2 evaluates strategies to contribute to positive relationships and the wellbeing of individuals, groups, families and communities
- H2.3 critically examines how individual rights and responsibilities in various environments contribute to wellbeing
- H3.1 analyses the sociocultural factors that lead to special needs of individuals in groups
- H3.2 evaluates networks available to individuals, groups and families within communities
- H3.3 critically analyses the role of policy and community structures in supporting diversity
- H3.4 critically evaluates the impact of social, legal and technological change on individuals, groups, families and communities
- H4.1 justifies and applied appropriate research methodologies
- H4.2 communicates ideas, debates issues and justifies opinions
- **H5.1** proposes management strategies to enable individuals and groups to satisfy their specific needs and to ensure equitable access to resources
- H5.2 develops strategies for managing multiple roles and demands of family, work and other environments
- H6.1 analyses how the empowerment of women and men influences the way they function within society
- **H6.2** formulates strategic plans that preserve rights, promote responsibilities and establish roles leading to the creation of positive social environments to the creation of positive social environments

FACULTY: TAS

DESIGN AND TECHNOLOGY

Tasks: Task Description:		Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
		Project Proposal Presentation	Innovation and Emerging Technology Case Study	Project Development and Management Report	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	H2.1, H4.1, H4.2	H2.2, H3.1, H3.2, H6.2	H4.3, H5.1, H5.2, H6.1	H1.1, H1.2, H2.1, H2.2
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 4	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and Understanding of course content	40%		20%		20%
Knowledge and skills in designing, managing, producing and evaluating a major design project	60%	20%		30%	10%
TOTAL	100%	20%	20%	30%	30%
DESIGN AND TECHNOLOGY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1.1 critically analyses the factors affecting design and the development and success of design projects
- **H1.2** relates the practices and processes of designers and producers to the major design project
- H2.1 explains the influence of trends in society on design and production
- **H2.2** evaluates the impact of design and innovation on society and the environment
- H3.1 analyses the factors that influence innovation and the success of innovation
- **H3.2** uses creative and innovative approaches in designing and producing
- H4.1 identifies a need or opportunity and researches and explores ideas for design development and production of the major design project
- H4.2 selects and uses resources responsibly and safely to realise a quality major design project
- H4.3 evaluates the processes undertaken and the impacts of the major design project
- **H5.1** manages the development of a quality major design project
- **H5.2** selects and uses appropriate research methods and communication techniques
- H6.1 justifies technological activities undertaken in the major design project through the study of industrial and commercial practices
- H6.2 critically assesses the emergence and impact of new technologies, and the factors affecting their development

FACULTY: PDHPE

EXPLORING EARLY CHILDHOOD

	Tasks:		Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Tas	Task Description:		Childrens' Nutrition Practical Task	Gender Analysis	Starting School Toolkit
	Outcomes:	1.5, 5.1, 6.2	1.2, 1.3, 5.1	2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 5.1	4.1, 4.2, 1.1, 1.2, 2.1
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 5	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 5	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 3	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 7
Knowledge and Understanding	50%	10%	15%	10%	15%
Process Skills	50%	15%	10%	15%	10%
TOTAL	100%	25%	25%	25%	25%

EXPLORING EARLY CHILDHOOD

Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **1.1** analyses prenatal issues that have an impact on development
- **1.2** examines major physical, social-emotional, behavioural, cognitive and language development of young children
- **1.3** examines the nature of different periods in childhood infant, toddler, preschool and the early school years
- **1.4** analyses the ways in which family, community and culture influence the growth and development of young children
- **1.5** examines the implications for growth and development when a child has special needs
- **2.1** analyses issues relating to the appropriateness of a range of services for different families
- 2.2 critically examines factors that influence the social world of young children
- 2.3 explains the importance of diversity as a positive issue for children and their families
- **2.4** analyses the role of a range of environmental factors that have an impact on the lives of young children
- 2.5 examines strategies that promote safe environments
- **3.1** evaluates strategies that encourage positive behaviour in young children
- **4.1** demonstrates appropriate communication skills with children and/or adults
- **4.2** interacts appropriately with children and adults from a wide range of cultural backgrounds
- **4.3** demonstrates appropriate strategies to resolve group conflict
- 5.1 analyses and compares information from a variety of sources to develop an understanding of child growth and development
- 6.1 demonstrates an understanding of decision making processes
- 6.2 critically examines all issues including beliefs and values that may influence interactions with others

FACULTY: TAS

FOOD TECHNOLOGY

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		Food Industry Report	Food Manufacture Experiment and Preparation	Contemporary Nutrition Issues Investigation	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	H2.1, H4.1, H4.2	H2.2, H3.1, H3.2, H6.2	H4.3, H5.1, H5.2, H6.1	H1.1, H1.2, H2.1, H2.2, H3.1, H6.2
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 5	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 5	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 3	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of course content	40%		20%		20%
Knowledge and skills in designing, managing, producing and evaluating a major design project	60%	20%		30%	10%
TOTAL	100%	20%	20%	30%	30%

FOOD TECHNOLOGY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1.1 explains manufacturing processes and technologies used in the production of food products
- H1.2 examines the nature and extent of the Australian food industry
- H1.3 justifies processes of food product development and manufacture in terms of market, technological and environmental considerations
- **H1.4** evaluates the impact of the operation of an organisation within the Australian food industry on the individual, society and environment
- **H2.1** evaluates the relationship between food, its production, consumption, promotion and health
- H3.1 Investigates operations of one organisation within the Australian food industry
- H3.2 independently investigates contemporary nutrition issues
- H4.1 develops, prepares and presents food using product development processes
- H4.2 applies principles of food preservation to extend the life of food and maintain safety
- H5.1 develops, realises and evaluates solutions to a range of food situations

FACULTY: HSIE

HISTORY EXTENSION

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3
Task Description:		Historical Process (proposal, process log, annotated sources)	Essay History Project	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	HE12-2, HE12-2, HE12-2	HE12-1, HE12-2, HE12-4	HE12-1, HE12-2, HE12-2
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Week 2	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding about significant historiographical ideas and processes	40%	15%	10%	15%
Skills in designing, undertaking and communicating historical inquiry 60% and analysis		15%	30%	15%
TOTAL	100%	30%	40%	30%

HISTORY EXTENSION Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **HE12-1** analyses and evaluates different approaches to history and the complexity of factor that shape historical interpretations
- **HE12-2** plans, conducts and presents a substantial historical investigation involving analysis, synthesis and evaluation of information from historical sources of differing perspectives and historical approaches
- HE12-3 communicates through detailed, well-structured texts to explain, argue, discuss, analyse and evaluate historical issues
- HE12-4 constructs an historical position about an area of historical inquiry, and discusses and challenges other positions

FACULTY: TAS

INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY – METAL AND ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES

	Tasks:		Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		Designing and Planning Presentation	Industry Study	Project Development and management Report	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	H3.1, H3.2, H3.3, H5.1	H1.1, H1.2, H1.3 H7.1	H4.3, H4.1, H2.1, H5.2	H4.2, H6.1 H6.2, H7.2
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022, Term 4 Week 8	2023, Term 1 Week 6	2023, Term 2 Weeks 6-8	2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of course content	40%	5%	5%	10%	20%
Knowledge and skills in the design, management, communication and production of a major project	60%	15%	15%	20%	10%
TOTAL	100%	20%	20%	30%	30%

INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1.1 investigates industry through the study of businesses in one focus area
- H1.2 identifies appropriate equipment, production and manufacturing techniques and describes the impact of new and developing technologies in industry
- H1.3 identifies important historical developments in the focus area industry
- H2.1 demonstrates proficiency in the use of safe working practices and workshop equipment maintenance techniques
- H3.1 demonstrates skills in sketching, producing and interpreting drawings
- H3.2 selects and applies appropriate research and problem-solving skills
- H3.3 applies and justifies design principles through the production of a Major Project
- H4.1 demonstrates competency in a range of practical skills appropriate to the Major Project
- H4.2 explores the need to outsource appropriate expertise where necessary to complement personal practical skills
- H4.3 critically applies knowledge and skills related to properties and characteristics of materials/components
- H5.1 selects and uses communication and information processing skills
- H5.2 examines and applies appropriate documentation techniques to project management
- **H6.1** evaluates the characteristics of quality manufactured products
- **H6.2** applies the principles of quality and quality control
- H7.1 explains the impact of the focus area industry on the social and physical environment
- H7.2 analyses the impact of existing, new and emerging technologies of the focus industry on society and the environment

FACULTY: SCIENCE

INVESTIGATING SCIENCE

	Tasks:		Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		Practical Investigation Module 5	Secondary Sourced Research Task Module 6	Depth Study Critical Review	Trial HSC Examination Module 5, 6, 7, 8
Outcomes:		INS12-1-5, INS12-7, INS12- 12	INS12-1-4, INS12-7, INS12-13	INS12-1, INS12-5-7, INS12-14, INS12-15	INS12-1-7, INS12-13, INS12-14, INS12-15
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 8	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 7	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 9	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Skills in working scientifically	60%	15%	15%	20%	10%
Knowledge and understanding of 40%		5%	5%	10%	20%
TOTAL	100%	20%	20%	30%	30%

INVESTIGATION SCIENCE

Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- **INS12-1** develops and evaluates questions and hypotheses for scientific investigation
- **INS12-2** designs and evaluates investigations in order to obtain primary and secondary data and information
- **INS12-3** conducts investigations to collect valid and reliable primary and secondary data and information
- **INS12-4** selects and processes appropriate qualitative and quantitative data and information using a range of appropriate media
- **INS12-5** analyses and evaluates primary and secondary data and information
- **INS12-6** solves scientific problems using primary and secondary data, critical thinking skills and scientific processes
- **INS12-7** communicates scientific understanding using suitable language and terminology for a specific audience or purpose
- **INS12-12** develops and evaluates the process of undertaking scientific investigations
- **INS12-13** Describes and explains how science drives the development of technologies
- **INS12-14** uses evidence-based analysis in a scientific investigation to support or refute a hypothesis
- **INS12-15** Evaluates the implications of ethical, social, economic and political influences on science

FACULTY: MATHEMATICS

MATHEMATICS STANDARD 2 PATHWAY

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task	Description:	In class project or stimulus	Assignment/Investigation	In class open book test	Trial HSC Examination
		activity			
	Outcomes:	MS2-12-3, MS2-12-4,	MS2-12-3, MS2-12-4,	MS2-12-1, MS2-12-2,	MS2-12-1, MS2-12-2,
		MS2-12-9, MS2-12-10	MS2-12-5, MS2-12-9,	MS-12-5, MS2-12-6,	MS2-12-3, MS2-12-4,
			MS2-12-10	MS2-12-7, MS2-12-9,	MS2-12-5, MS2-12-6,
				MS2-12-10	MS2-12-7, MS2-12-8,
					MS2-12-9, MS2-12-10
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022 <i>,</i> Term 4	2023, Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3
		Week 7	Week 9	Week 6	Weeks 4 & 5
Understanding, Fluency and Communicating	50%	15%	10%	10%	15%
Problem Solving, Reasoning and Justification	50%	15%	10%	10%	15%
TOTAL	100%	30%	20%	20%	30%

MATHEMATICS STANDARD 2 PATHWAY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- MS2-12-1 uses detailed algebraic and graphical techniques to critically evaluate and construct arguments in a range of familiar and unfamiliar contexts
- MS2-12-2 analyses representations of data in order to make inferences, predictions and draw conclusions
- MS2-12-3 interprets the results of measurements and calculations and makes judgements about their reasonableness, including the degree of accuracy and the conversion of units where appropriate
- **MS2-12-4** analyses two-dimensional and three-dimensional models to solve practical problems
- MS2-12-5 makes informed decisions about financial situations, including annuities and loan repayments
- **MS2-12-6** solves problems by representing the relationships between changing quantities in algebraic and graphical forms
- MS2-12-7 solves problems requiring statistical processes, including the use of the normal distribution and the correlation of bivariate data
- **MS2-12-8** solves problems using networks to model decision-making in practical problems
- MS2-12-9 chooses and uses appropriate technology effectively in a range of contexts, and applies critical thinking to recognise appropriate times and methods for such use
- MS2-12-10 uses mathematical argument and reasoning to evaluate conclusions, communicating a position clearly to others and justifying a response

Students MUST sit the HSC examination paper

FACULTY: MATHEMATICS

MATHEMATICS STANDARD 1 PATHWAY

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task	Task Description:		In class project or stimulus activity	In class open book test	Trial HSC Examination
Outcomes:		MS1-12-3, MS1-12-4, MS1-12-9, MS1-12-10	MS1-12-2, MS1-12-5, MS1-12-7, MS1-12-9, MS1-12-10	MS1-12-1, MS1-12-2, MS1-12-3, MS1-12-4, MS1-12-6, MS1-12-7, MS1-12-9, MS1-12-10	MS1-12-1, MS1-12-2, MS1-12-3, MS1-12-4, MS1-12-5, MS1-12-6, MS1-12-7, MS1-12-8, MS1-12-9, MS1-12-10
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 7	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Week 9	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 6	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Understanding, Fluency and Communicating	50%	15%	10%	10%	15%
Problem Solving, Reasoning and Justification	50%	15%	10%	10%	15%
TOTAL	100%	30%	20%	20%	30%

MATHEMATICS STANDARD 1 PATHWAY Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- MS1-12-1 uses algebraic and graphical techniques to evaluate and construct arguments in a range of familiar and unfamiliar contexts
- MS1-12-2 analyses representations of data in order to make predictions and draw conclusions
- **MS1-12-3** interprets the results of measurements and calculations and makes judgements about their reasonableness
- **MS1-12-4** analyses simple two-dimensional and three-dimensional models to solve practical problems
- MS1-12-5 makes informed decisions about financial situations likely to be encountered post-school
- **MS1-12-6** represents the relationships between changing quantities in algebraic and graphical forms
- **MS1-12-7** solves problems requiring statistical processes
- MS1-12-8 applies network techniques to solve network problems
- MS1-12-9 chooses and uses appropriate technology effectively and recognises appropriate times for such use
- MS1-12-10 uses mathematical argument and reasoning to evaluate conclusions, communicating a position clearly to others

Students MAY OPT IN to sit the HSC examination paper

FACULTY: MATHEMATICS

MATHEMATICS ADVANCED

	Tasks:		Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Task Description:		In class test	Assignment/Investigation	In class open test	Trial HSC Examination
	Outcomes:	MA12-2, MA12-4, MA12-9,	MA12-1, MA12-2, MA12-4,	MA12-3, MA12-6, MA12-7,	MA12-1, MA12-2, MA12-3,
		MA12-10	MA12-5, MA12-9, MA12-10	MA12-9, MA12-10	MA12-4, MA12-5, MA12-6,
					MA12-7, MA12-8, MA12-9,
					MA12-10
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022 <i>,</i> Term 4	2023, Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3
		Week 7	Week 9	Week 6	Weeks 4 & 5
Understanding, Fluency and Communicating	50%	8%	14%	13%	15%
Problem Solving, Reasoning and Justification	50%	12%	11%	12%	15%
TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

MATHEMATICS ADVANCED Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- MA12-1 uses detailed algebraic and graphical techniques to critically construct, model and evaluate arguments in a range of familiar and unfamiliar contexts
- MA12-2 models and solves problems and makes informed decisions about financial situations using mathematical reasoning and techniques
- MA12-3 applies calculus techniques to model and solve problems
- MA12-4 applies the concepts and techniques of arithmetic and geometric sequences and series in the solution of problems
- MA12-5 applies the concepts and techniques of periodic functions in the solution of problems involving trigonometric graphs
- MA12-6 applies appropriate differentiation methods to solve problems
- MA12-7 applies the concepts and techniques of indefinite and definite integrals in the solution of problems
- MA12-8 solves problems using appropriate statistical processes
- MA12-9 chooses and uses appropriate technology effectively in a range of contexts, models and applies critical thinking to recognise appropriate times for such use
- MA12-10 constructs arguments to prove and justify results and provides reasoning to support conclusions which are appropriate to the context

Students MUST sit the HSC examination paper

FACULTY: HSIE

MODERN HISTORY

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Т	ask Description:	National Study Historical	Core Study: Power and	Peace and Conflict Essay	Trial HSC Examination
		Investigation	Authority in the Modern		
			World 1919-1946 Source		
			Analysis		
	Outcomes:	MH12-1, MH12-4, MH12-5	MH12-2, MH12-6, MH12-7	MH12-2, MH12-3, MH12-8	MH12-1, MH12-3, MH12-9
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
	Weighting	2022, Term 4	2023, Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3
		Week 8	Week 9	Week 8	Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and understanding of the course content	40%	5%	10%	15%	10%
Historical skills in the analysis and evaluation of sources and interpretations	20%	5%	5%		10%
Historical inquiry and research	20%	10%	5%	5%	
Communication of historical understanding in appropriate forms	nderstanding in 20%		5%	5%	10%
TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

Modern History Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- MH12-1 Accounts for the nature of continuity and change in the modern world.
- MH12-2 Proposes arguments about the varying causes and effects of events and developments.
- **MH12-3** Evaluates the role of historical features, individuals, groups and ideas in shaping the past.
- MH12-4 Analyse the different perspectives of individuals and groups in their historical context.
- MH12-5 Assesses the significance of historical features, people, ideas, movements, events and developments of the modern world.
- MH12-6 Analyses and interprets different types of sources for evidence to support an historical account or argument.
- MH12-7 Discusses and evaluates differing interpretations and representations of the past.
- MH12-8 Plans and conducts historical investigations and presents reasoned conclusions, using relevant evidence from a range of sources.
- MH12-9 Communicates historical understanding, using historical knowledge, concepts and terms, in appropriate and well-structured forms.

FACULTY: PDHPE

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT HEALTH PHYSICAL EDUCATION

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
Ta	Task Description:		Research Presentation	Extended Responses	Trial HSC Examination
Outcomes:		H1, H2, H3, H4, H5, H14, H15, H16,	H7, H8, H10, H11, H17	H7, H8, H9, H10, H11, H16, H17	H1, H2, H3, H4, H5, H6, H7, H8, H9, H10, H11, H13, H14, H15, H16, H17
Syllabus Requirements	Syllabus Weighting	Date Due: 2022, Term 4 Week 9	Date Due: 2023, Term 1 Weeks 10 & 11	Date Due: 2023, Term 2 Week 9	Date Due: 2023, Term 3 Weeks 4 & 5
Knowledge and Understanding	40%	10%	10%	10%	10%
Skills in Critical Thinking, Research and Analysis and Communicating	60%	15%	15%	15%	15%
TOTAL	100%	25%	25%	25%	25%

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT HEALTH PHYSICAL EDUCATION Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1 describes the nature, and justifies the choice, of Australia's health priorities
- H2 analyses and explains the health status of Australians in terms of current trends and groups most at risk
- **H3** analyses the determinants of health and health inequities
- **H4** argues the case for the new public health approach to health promotion
- H5 explains the different roles and responsibilities of individuals, communities and governments in addressing Australia's health priorities
- H6 demonstrates a range of personal health skills that enables them to promote and maintain health (Option 1)
- H7 explains the relationship between physiology and movement potential
- H8 explains how a variety of training approaches and other interventions enhance performance and safety in physical activity
- H9 explains how movement skill is acquired and appraised
- H10 designs and implements training plans to improve performance
- H11 designs psychological strategies and nutritional plans in response to individual performance needs
- H12 analyses the influence of sociocultural factors on the way people participate in and value physical activity and sport (Option 2)
- H13 selects and applies strategies for the management of injuries and the promotion of safety in sport and physical activity (Option 3)
- H13 selects and applies strategies for the management of injuries and the promotion of safety in sport and physical activity (Option 3)
- H14 argues the benefits of health-promoting actions and choices that promote social justice
- H15 critically analyses key issues affecting the health of Australians and proposes ways of working towards better health for all
- H16 devises methods of gathering, interpreting and communicating information about health and physical activity concepts
- H17 selects appropriate options and formulates strategies based on a critical analysis of the factors that affect performance and safe participation

FACULTY: PDHPE

SPORT, LIFESTYLE AND RECREATION

	Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3
Ta	ask Description:	Theory Assessment	Theory Assessment	Practical Participation
		Written Response	Written Response	Assessment (ongoing)
	Outcomes:	1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5	1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5	1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5
Syllabus	Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
Requirements	Weighting	2023 <i>,</i> Term 1	2023, Term 2	2023, Terms 4-3
		Week 8	Weeks 5	(ongoing)
Understanding	30%	10%	10%	10%
Skills	40%	10%	10%	20%
Participation	30%		10%	20%
TOTAL	100%	20%	30%	50%

SPORT, LIFESTYLE AND RECREATION Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- 1. knowledge and understanding of the factors that influence health and participation in physical activity
- 1.1 applies the rules and conventions that relate to participation in a range of physical activities
- **1.2** explains the relationship between physical activity, fitness and healthy lifestyle
- **1.3** demonstrates ways to enhance safety in physical activity
- **1.4** investigates and interprets the patterns of participation in sport and physical activity in Australia
- **1.5** critically analyses the factors affecting lifestyle balance and their impact on health status
- **1.6** describes administrative procedures that support successful performance outcomes
- 2. knowledge and understanding of the principles and processes impacting on the realisation of movement potential
- 2.1 explains the principles of skill development and training
- **2.2** analyses the fitness requirements of specific activities
- 2.3 selects and participates in physical activities that meet individual needs, interests and abilities
- 2.4 describes how societal influences impact on the nature of sport in Australia
- 2.5 describes the relationship between anatomy, physiology and performance
- 3. the ability to analyse and implement strategies that promote health, physical activity and enhanced performance
- **3.1** selects appropriate strategies and tactics for success in a range of movement contexts
- **3.2** designs programs that respond to performance needs
- **3.3** measures and evaluates physical performance capacity

FACULTY: TAS

VISUAL ARTS

		Tasks:	Task 1	Task 2	Task 3	Task 4
	Task [Description:	Statement of Intent	Artist Case Study	Final Examination	Final Body of Work
			Body of Work			
		Outcomes:	H1, H4	Н7, Н8	H9, H10	H1, H4, H5, H6, H3, H2
Syllabus Requirements		Syllabus	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:	Date Due:
		Weighting	2022, Term 4	2023, Term 2	2023, Term 3	2023, Term 3
			Week 8	Weeks 2	Weeks 4 & 5	Weeks 4 & 5
Art making		50%	20%			30%
Art criticism and art history		50%		25%	25%	
	TOTAL	100%	20%	25%	25%	30%

VISUAL ARTS Higher School Certificate Assessment Outcomes

- H1 initiates and organises art making practice that is sustained, reflective and adapted to suit particular conditions
- H2 applies their understanding of the relationships among the artist, artwork, world and audience through the making of a body of work
- H3 demonstrates an understanding of the frames when working independently in the making of art
- H4 selects and develops subject matter and forms in particular ways as representations in art-making
- H5 demonstrates conceptual strength in the production of a body of work that exhibits coherence and may be interpreted in a range of ways
- H6 demonstrates technical accomplishment, refinement and sensitivity appropriate to the artistic intentions within a body of work
- H7 applies their understanding of practice in art criticism and art history
- **H8** applies their understanding of the relationships among the artist, artwork, world and audience
- H9 demonstrates an understanding of how the frames provide for different orientations to critical and historical investigations of art
- H10 constructs a body of significant art histories, critical narratives and other documentary accounts of representation in the visual

Construction

Assessment Summary for CPC20211 Certificate II in Construction Pathways

Requirements for HSC purposes	Date	20					
Work Placement (compulsory for the HSC) 70 hours in total	Term 1, Weeks 6-8 2023						
Trial HSC exam - Students whose HSC pattern of study makes them	Term 3, Weeks 4 & 5 2023						
eligible to receive an ATAR must sit the trial HSC exam.	Ten	11 5, 99		Q J 20	23		
Cluster name, unit of competency code and title.	Observation of practical work	Product assessment	Oral questioning	Written assignment,	Role-play. Oral presentation	Self- Assessment	HSC examinable
Cluster 1 Working Safely in the Construction Industry							
CPCOHS2001A Apply OHS requirements, policies and procedures in	Υ		Y	Y		Y	Y
the construction industry							
Cluster 2 Carpentry Basics							
CPCCCA2011A Handle carpentry materials	Υ	Y	Y	Y		Y	
CPCCA2002B Use carpentry tools and equipment	y	y	у	у			**
Cluster 3 White Card			<u> </u>				
CPCCWHS1001 Prepare to work safely in the construction industry	Υ		Y	Y	Y		Y
Cluster 4 Levelling							
CPCCCM2006B Apply basic levelling procedures	Y		Y	Y			
Cluster 5 Reading Plans					•	•	
CPCCCM2001A Read and interpret plans and specifications	Y		Y	Y			Y
Cluster 6 Prepare for Concreting							
CPCCCA2003A Erect and dismantle formwork for footings and slabs on	Y	Y		Y		Y	
ground							
CPCCCM1015A Carry out measurements and calculations	Y	Y		Y		Y	Y
Cluster 7 Group Project							
CPCCCM1013A Plan and organise work	Y	Y		Y		Y	Y
CPCCM2004A Handle construction materials	Y			Y			
Cluster 8 Skills Into Action							
CPCCCM1012A Work effectively and sustainably in the construction				Y		Υ	Y
industry							
CPCCCM1014A Conduct workplace communication				Y	Y		Y
Cluster 9 Option 1: Joinery Option 1 or 2 must be completed to gain the	qualifi	cation	and be	eligibl	e for tl	ne HSC	
(delete units not being delivered)							
CPCCJN2001A Assemble components	Y	Y		Y		Υ	
CPCCJN2002B Prepare for off-site manufacturing process	Y	Υ		Y		Υ	
Cluster 9 Option 2: Brick and Block Laying							
CPCCBL2001A Handle and prepare bricklaying material	Y	Υ		Υ		Y	
CPCCBL2002A Use bricklaying and blocklaying tools and equipment	Y	Y		Υ		Y	

** <u>CPCCCM2005B</u> Use construction tools and equipment – syllabus content to be delivered

Depending on the achievement of units of competency; the possible AQF qualification outcome is CPC20211 Certificate II in Construction Pathways or a Statement of Attainment towards CPC20211 Certificate II in Construction Pathways.

Hospitality Assessment Summary for SIT20316 Certificate II in Hospitality

Assessment Summary for SIT2031	le Certi	ficate .	II in Ho	ospitai	ity					
Requirements for HSC purposes			Dates							
Work Placement (compulsory for the HSC) 70 hours in total			1, Wee	ks 6-8 2	023					
Trial HSC exam - Students whose HSC pattern of study makes			1 3, Wee							
eligible to receive an ATAR must sit the trial HSC exam.			,							
	1	1	T	r						
	o f ork				ral	n tary				
	Observation of practical work	nent	ning	Written assignment,	test, quiz Role play, oral	presentation Supplementa	e HSC able			
	erva	duct	stio	Written assignm	rest, quiz Role play,	plen	er, H mina			
	Obs	Product Assessment	Oral questioning	Wri assi	Role	presentation Supplementary	Evidence Other, HSC examinable			
Chuston 1 Marking Together, new cluster		1		L		ł				
Cluster 1 Working Together new cluster BSBWOR203 Work effectively with others				Y	Y		Y			
BSBCMM201 Communicate in the Workplace				Ŷ	Ŷ					
		I		•	1.					
Cluster 2 Safe and hygienic food preparation-new cluster										
Part A Hygienic Food Preparation										
SITXFSA001 Use hygienic practices for food safety	Y			Y			Y			
Part B Safe Food Preparation										
SITHCCC001 Use food preparation equipment	Y	Y		Y						
SITXFSA002 Participate in safe food handling practices	Y	Y		Υ						
Cluster 3 Café Skills- new assessment requirement SITHFAB005 Part A Prepare and serve espresso coffee	Y	Y	1	/		Y	Y			
STITIFABOUS Part A Prepare and serve espresso conee	r	T	1	r		r	r Portfolio			
SITHFAB004 Part B Prepare and serve non-alcoholic	Y	Y	Ŋ	/		Y	Y			
beverages		•				•	' Portfolio			
							1 of clone			
Cluster 4 Safe and Sustainable work practices										
SITXWHS001 Participate in safe work practices	Υ			Υ	Y		Y			
BSBSUS201 Participate in environmentally sustainable work				Υ						
practices										
Cluster 5 Interacting with diverse customers										
SITXCCS003 Interact with customers	Y			Y	Y		Y			
SITXCOM002 Show social and cultural sensitivity	Y			Y	Y					
· · ·	1		1							
Cluster 6 Serving food and beverages – new assessment requi	rement									
SITHFAB007 Serve food and beverage	Y		١	(Y	Y			
							Portfolio			
Cluster 7 Keeping up to date with industry										
SITHIND002 Source and use information on the hospitality				Y			Y			

Cluster 8 Use hospitality skills effectively – new assessment requirement

STEHINDOUS USE nospitality skills effectively Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	SITHIND003 Use hospitality skills effectively Y	Y		Y		Y	Portfolio
---	---	---	--	---	--	---	-----------

Primary Industries

Assessment Summary for AHC21216 Certificate II in Rural Operations

Assessment Summary for Anczizio Ce			in ita					
Requirements for HSC purposes	Dates							
Work Placement (compulsory for the HSC) 70 hours in total	Term 1, Weeks 6-8 2023							
Trial HSC exam - Students whose HSC pattern of study makes	Term 3, Weeks 4 & 5 2023							
them eligible to receive an ATAR must sit the trial HSC exam.								
								1
Cluster name and unit of competency code and title.	.		ല	est,			¥	٩
	o no vork	Ŀ	ioni	t, Te	Oral on		mei	nab
	/atic :al w	t men	uest	n nen	lay, tati	arty	sess	ami
	Observation of practical work	Product assessment	Oral questioning	Written assignment, Test, Quiz	Role play, Oral Presentation	Third Party Report	Self-assessment	HSC examinable
			-	∑ a S	Pr	Th R€	Se	Ĥ
Qualification Packaging Rules: <u>https://training.gov.au/Training/</u>	Details	AHC	<u>21216</u>					
Cluster 1 Participate in WHS Processes								
AHCWHS201 Participate in WHS Processes	Y		Y	Y		Y		Y
Cluster 2 Working in the Industry AHCWRK209 Participate in environmentally sustainable work	Y	<u> </u>	v	Y	Y	v		V
practices	Ŷ		Y	Ŷ	Y	Y		Y
AHCWRK204 Work effectively in the industry	Y		Y	Y	Y	Y		Y
Anewriczo4 work enectively in the industry	1				<u> </u>			<u> </u>
Cluster 3 Weather								1
AHCWRK201 Observe and report on weather	Y			Y		Y		Y
Cluster 4 Chemicals								
AHCCHM201 Apply chemicals under supervision	Y			Y	Y			Y
AHCCPM201 Treat Weeds	Y			Y	Y			Y
				ł				•
Cluster 5 Healthy Animals (for students following the livestock str				N	1	V		V
AHCLSK202 Care for health and welfare of livestock	Y		-	Y		Y		Y
AHCLSK205 Handle livestock using basic techniques	Y			Y Y		Y Y		Y Y
AHCLSK206 Identify and mark livestock	Y			Ŷ		Ŷ		ř
Cluster 6 Healthy Plants (for students following the plant stream)								
AHCPMG202 Treat plant pests, diseases and disorders	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y
AHCNSY202 Care for nursery plants	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y
AHCPCM201 Recognise plants	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y
Cluster 7 Tractors								
AHCMOM202 Operate tractors	Y		Y	Y				
AHCMOM304 Operate machinery and equipment	Y		Y	Y				
				1				
Cluster 9 Fencing					1	<u> </u>		1
AHCINF202 Install, maintain and repair farm fencing	Y	Y		Y				
AHCINF201 Carry out basic electric fencing operations	Y	Y		Y				
Cluster 10 Grow Plants								
AHCNSY201 Pot up plants	Y	Y		Y				
AHCSOL202 Assist with soil or growing media sampling and testir	ng Y	Y		Y	1			İ
AHCNSY203 Undertake propagation activities	Y	Y		Y	1			
	U	I				<u>. </u>		•
Cluster 12 Clean Machinery			V	V				
AHCBIO201 Inspect and clean machinery for plant, animal and so Depending on the achievement of units of competency; the possib			Y	Y			<u> </u>	

Depending on the achievement of units of competency; the possible AQF qualification outcome is AHC21216 Certificate II in Rural Operations or a Statement of Attainment towards AHC21216 Certificate II in Rural Operations.

GLOSSARY OF KEY WORDS

Syllabus outcomes, objectives, performance bands and examination questions have key words that state what students are expected to be able to do. A glossary of key words has been developed to help provide a common language and consistent meaning in the Higher School Certificate documents.

Using the glossary will help teachers and students understand what is expected in responses in examinations and assessment tasks.

Account	Account for: state reasons for, report on. Give an account of: narrate a series of events or transactions
Analyse	Identify components and the relationship between them; draw out and relate implications
Apply	Use, utilise, employ in a particular situation
Appreciate	Make a judgement about the value of
Assess	Make a judgement of value, quality, outcomes, results or size
Calculate	Ascertain/determine from given facts, figures or information
Clarify	Make clear or plain
Classify	Arrange or include in classes/categories
Compare	Show how things are similar or different
Construct	Make; build; put together items or arguments
Contrast	Show how things are different or opposite
Critically	Add a degree or level of accuracy depth, knowledge and understanding, logic, questioning,
Critically	reflection and quality to (analyse/evaluate)
Deduce	Draw conclusions
Define	State meaning and identify essential qualities
Demonstrate	Show by example
Describe	Provide characteristics and features
Discuss	Identify issues and provide points for and/or against
Distinguish	Recognise or note/indicate as being distinct or different from; to note differences
-	between
Evaluate	Make a judgement based on criteria; determine the value of
Examine	Inquire into
Explain	Relate cause and effect; make the relationships between things evident; provide why
	and/or how
Extract	Choose relevant and/or appropriate details
Extrapolate	Infer from what is known
Identify	Recognise and name
Interpret	Draw meaning from
Investigate	Plan, inquire into and draw conclusions about
Justify	Support an argument or conclusion
Outline	Sketch in general terms; indicate the main features of
Predict	Suggest what may happen based on available information
Propose	Put forward (for example a point of view, idea, argument, suggestion) for consideration or
	action
Recall	Present remembered ideas, facts or experiences
Recommend	Provide reasons in favour
Recount	Retell a series of events
Summarise	Express, concisely, the relevant details
Synthesise	Putting together various elements to make a whole



Malpractice Appeal Form

Please submit this appeal form (within 2 school days of HT decision) to the Deputy Principal

□ Step One: Appeal to Deputy Principal

Student Name:	Course:	
Task Name:		Date:

Teacher: _____

Reason/s for appeal: (Evidence provided to demonstrate student's own work. Please attach additional evidence to this form as required)

For Office Use Only:

Deputy Principal Decision

□ No change to HT decision: Reason/s:

□ Change to decision: Reason/s and decision outcome: Malpractice Register updated

HT Informed

Student informed

Signed: _____ (Deputy Principal) Date:

(Deputy Principal)

Step Two: Appeal to Principal

Please attach/provide only new evidence to the Principal in relation to your appeal and your reasons for the appeal below:

For Office Use Only:

Principal Decision

No change to DP decision: Reason/s:

Change to DP decision: Reason/s and decision outcome: Malpractice Register updated

DP Informed	DP HT Informed	□ Student informed
Duin single Cignature		Data
Principal Signature:		Date:



Task/Result Appeal Form

Please submit within 2 school days of the task being returned to you

Student Name:	Course:	
Date:	Teacher:	
Task Name:		
Step One – Course Teach	er contacted: YES/NO Date of Contact:	
Step Two – Appeal to Hea	ad Teacher	
Reasons for appeal of mark guidelines/course outcomes/feedba	(clear reference to task administration breakdown, ck to be made here):	/marking
No change to mark. Reasons: _		
☐ Change to mark. Reasons:		
□ New Mark:	Updated result recorded	
□ Student informed	Teacher informed	
Head Teacher Signature:	Date:	

□ Step Three – Appeal Deputy Principal: Attach any new or additional information.

□ No change to mark. Reason	าร:		
□ Change to mark. Reasons:			
□ New Mark:	□ Updated result recorded		
\Box Student informed	□ Head Teacher informed		
Deputy Principal Signature:		Date:	
Change to mark. Reasons:			
New Mark:	Updated result recorded		
Student informed	 Head Teacher informed 	 Deputy Principal informed 	
Principal Signature:		Date:	



NON-COMPLETION OF AN ASSESSMENT TASK

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL CONSIDERATION FOR AN ACCIDENT / MISADVENTURE / ILLNESS / SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

PART A: TO BE COMPLETED BY STUDENT BEFORE COMPLETION BY TEACHER

To: Mr / Mrs / Miss / Ms	
Head Teacher of:	
Student's Name:	
Class /subject:	
Class Teacher:	
Description of the task:	
Due Date for Uncompleted Task: (day	/) / /
 Delete one: I have been unable to Complete the task on the required date (for in-school assessment tas Submit the task by the required date (for assignments etc) 	iks)
REASON	
Supporting documents are / are not attached eg. Doctor's Ce	ertificate
Student's Signature:	
Parent / Guardian's Signature: [Date: / /

PART B: TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CLASS TEACHER / HEAD TEACHER BEFORE THE APPLICATION IS SUBMITTED

Recommendation by Class Teacher / Head Tea	acher				
Teachers are requested to write a recommendation with regard to this application. Alternatively, the teacher could refer this application to the Head Teacher or discuss it directly with the Assessment Coordinator.					
Class Teacher Signature:	Date://				
Head Teacher Signature:	Date://				

NOTE: Head Teacher KLA then passes completed form onto assessment coordinator.

PART C: RECOMMENDATION OF ASSESSMENT COORDINATOR

	Same task to be completed
	Estimate based on all other assessment tasks
	Estimate based on substitute task being set and completed
	Extension of time granted until
	Zero mark to be given
	Show as non-attempt: N Determination Warning to be issued Other
Signat	ture of Assessment Coordinator:
Date:	//

(Office: 3 copies, original to DP, Faculty, Class Teacher, student)

NSW Education Standards Authority 2022 Illness

NSW Education Standards Authority



2022 Illness Misadventure – Student Information Guide

Information Guide

The New South Wales Education Standards Authority (NESA) Illness/Misadventure program assists students who:

- are prevented from attending an exam (including a practical exam) due to unforeseen situations such as illness or misadventure
- consider that their performance in an exam has been affected by unforeseen situations such as illness or misadventure immediately before or during the exam.

If either of the above categories applies to you at the time of the HSC exams, you will need to complete an Illness/Misadventure application. Before you complete the application, you should read the following information carefully. You should refer also to *Rules and Procedures for Higher School Certificate Candidates*.

Limitations on Applications

NESA's responsibility is limited to the conduct and presentation of the exams. This means students may only apply to NESA in relation to circumstances that occur **immediately** before or **during** an exam that affect their performance in the exam.

You **cannot** submit an application on the basis of:

- difficulties in preparation or loss of preparation time; for example as a result of an earlier or preexisting illness
- long-term illnesses such as glandular fever, unless you suffer a flare-up of the condition during the exam
- the same grounds for which you received disability provisions, unless you experience additional difficulties during an exam
- alleged deficiencies in teaching; for example extended teacher absences
- Ioss of study time or facilities during Year 12
- misreading the exam timetable. If you miss an exam or arrive late to an exam because you misread the timetable, contact your principal immediately. He or she may make a submission to NESA on your behalf
- misreading exam instructions
- failure to enter for the exam in the correct course
- illness and/or misadventure in a course that is undertaken as a self-tuition student
- other commitments, such as participation in entertainment, family holiday, work or sporting events, or attendance at exams conducted by other education organisations.

If you are unsure whether you are eligible, you should ask your principal.

Your Rights and Responsibilities

It is your right and responsibility to submit an Illness/Misadventure application whenever necessary. Only if you are incapacitated, an application may be submitted by your parent/guardian on your behalf.

When completing an Illness/Misadventure application, you should pay close attention to the instructions and complete all relevant sections. Submitting an incomplete application could jeopardise the outcomes.

Attendance at Exams

You must attend every exam. Do not miss an exam just because you do not feel able to do your best. The Illness/Misadventure program is designed to support students who perform below their expectations because of unforeseen illness or misadventure.

NB: If you do not attend an exam and your Illness/Misadventure application is unsuccessful, you will not receive a result in that course. This could mean that you are ineligible for the award of the Higher School Certificate.

NESA does not expect you to attend an exam against specific medical advice. If you cannot attend an exam (including a practical exam) you must notify your principal immediately. Provide them with all relevant sections of the Illness/Misadventure form and any other relevant medical documentation to support your application.

You must seek medical advice and the medical practitioner must complete NESA's Illness/Misadventure form (Section C1) at the time of the exams for each and every exam you are applying for.

Evidence of Your Illness or Misadventure

It is very important to provide independent evidence with your application. You must seek independent evidence **on the same day, either immediately before or after each exam** for which you are applying. The documentation you provide must be current, specific to the date and time of the exam, and submitted with the Illness/Misadventure form.

A medical certificate that merely states you were unfit for work/study is unacceptable.

Practical Submissions

If, as a result of unforeseen illness or misadventure, you experience difficulties in completing your practical submission, you must advise your teacher immediately. They will complete Section B of the Illness/ Misadventure form. For example, a Visual Arts Body of Work or Society and Culture Personal Interest Project.

Performance Exams

If unforeseen illness or misadventure occurs before the exam begins, and you are still able to attend the exam, notify your principal before you begin the exam. If you are presenting for the exam at a venue other than your home school, notify a NESA officer. For example, a Drama performance exam or Language speaking exam.

Before starting your exam, also advise the Examiner of your situation. Do not hesitate to approach the Examiner as their observations will be important in assessing your Illness/Misadventure application.

In the case of performance exams, it is not necessary to have Section B of the form completed. The Examiner will complete a report and send it to NESA separately.

Written Exams

If you are suffering from unforeseen illness or misadventure, but are still able to attend the exam, you must notify the Presiding Officer (the person supervising the exam) before the exam starts. If the illness or misadventure occurs during any exam, notify the Presiding Officer at once.

Do not hesitate to approach the Presiding Officer. They are there to help you. If you submit an Illness/Misadventure application, the Presiding Officer will need to complete Section B.

Completing & Submitting Your Application

The application **must not** be completed before the relevant exam has been conducted, or before the due date for practical submissions.

Before signing the **Student Declaration**, read the statements above the signature box very carefully. It is strongly recommended that you sign the form only after you have completed Section A, and after Section C has been completed by an appropriate person.

NB. If Section C is incomplete and you did not attend an exam, you may not receive a result in that course. This could mean that you are ineligible for the award of the Higher School Certificate.

It is the Principal's responsibility to submit your application to NESA.

All sections need to be completed as follows:

Form	Completed By:	Submit to:
Student information and declaration	Student	Principal
Section A	 Student Complete Section A of this form on each day of each exam you apply for. Notify the Presiding Officer (written) or marker/examiner (practical) for every exam you apply for. 	Principal
Section B	Presiding Officer- for written exams Class teacher- for practical submissions Note: for speaking, or performance exams (eg Languages, Music) the examiner/marker will complete a report and send it to NESA separately.	Principal
Section C	 Medical practioner or appropriate persons (eg police officer, road assistance, fire brigade). Take this form to your doctor or another appropriate person to have Sections C1 and/or C2 completed. Additional evidence may be attached to Section C. 	Principal
Section D	Principal	NESA The principal must submit the application with all required documentation via Schools online.

The NESA Application Process

The NESA Illness/Misadventure Panel considers and makes a recommendation on each application on the basis of:

- NESA's responsibility in relation to the Education Act 1990, and
- the evidence presented in your Illness/Misadventure application.

The Illness/Misadventure Panel consists of senior education professionals who operate as a team and follow strict procedures. Each application is reviewed by a minimum of two panel members to ensure that every case is determined fairly and consistently. Complex matters may be referred the panel chair or to an independent medical expert for advice.

You will be notified of the outcome of your application on the same day as you receive your Higher School Certificate results.

Closing Dates for Applications Practical exams – one week after the exam or submission date

Written exams – within one week of the your last exam and no later than the last scheduled HSC exam.

Exam Illness/Misadventure Application Checklist

Please tick to ensure:

- you have correctly recorded your student number
- you have completed Section A for **EACH AND EVERY** exam you wish to apply for. You should write **specific comments** for each exam and not just duplicate comments.
- you have had Sections C1 and/or C2 completed and attached the relevant documents for each exam for which you are applying. Reminder a medical certificate that merely states you were unfit for work/study is unacceptable.

you have signed the student declaration form

If you have any questions about the Illness/Misadventure program that your principal cannot answer, please call (02) 9367 8381 or (02) 9367 8325.



2022 Illness Misadventure

Declaration

This form must be completed by the student who is applying for Illness/ Misadventure

1,	Student Number:

request that the NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) consider my application for Illness Misadventure.

I have carefully read the HSC Rules and Procedures guide, detailing Illness/Misadventure application and the instructions on this form.

I consider that my exam performance was affected by unforeseen illness or misadventure which occurred immediately before or during the exam(s). I declare that all the information that I have supplied is true.

I give permission for a medical practitioner appointed by NESA or its officers to obtain further details from any person who has provided evidence in Sections C1 or C2, if applicable and considered necessary by NESA.

Student's signature:	Student's contact number:	
Student's email address:	Date:	

NB. If the student is unable to sign for themselves please contact: Student Support (02) 9367 8381 or (02) 9367 8325

NOTES
